
Consistent with federal and state regulations, institutions that offer any out-of-state activities related to credit-
bearing courses such as online courses, field experiences (e.g., internships for credit, practicums), and 
recruiting or marketing of programs are mandated to follow the other state’s laws and to obtain any necessary 
authorization to operate in that jurisdiction prior to conducting the activity. 

To assist in the management of these requirements, Mary Baldwin University participates in the National 
Council for State Authorization Reciprocity Agreements (SARA).  SARA is a “voluntary agreement among its 
member states and U.S. territories that establishes comparable national standards for interstate offering of 
postsecondary distance-education courses and programs. It is intended to make it easier for students to take 
online courses offered by postsecondary institutions based in another state.”  In instances where an activity is 
not covered by SARA, MBU must seek authorization or exemption from the state where the curriculum is 
accessed.  MBU works with regulatory agencies in each state and the U.S. Territories to seek authorization, 
exemption, or permission to offer degree or certificate programs and courses to residents outside Virginia who 
wish to enroll in MBU distance learning education opportunities. 

All guidance provided on this site assumes that MBU's presence in other states is on-line or specific to a field 
experience.  Establishing an administrative or instructional site (i.e., physical presence) outside of the 
Commonwealth of Virginia carries significant and distinct review and approval requirements. 

Institutional Professional Licensure Requirements 

MBU Licensure Preparation Programs 
Mary Baldwin University (MBU) has seven academic programs that are designed to prepare students for a 
career in a licensed profession upon completion of the program. A professional license is typically required for 
graduates of these programs to practice and/or gain employment in these fields. If you are considering 
applying to one of these programs and plan to be licensed outside of Virginia, please select the program link 
for more information regarding educational requirements for professional licensure in the U.S. states, 
commonwealths, and territories. 

Doctor of Physical Therapy 

The program has determined that its curriculum meets the state educational requirements for licensure or 
certification in all states, the District of Colombia, Puerto Rico, and the U.S. Virgin Islands secondary to its 
accreditation by the Commission on Accreditation in Physical Therapy Education, based on the following: 

CAPTE accreditation of a physical therapist or physical therapist assistant program satisfies state educational 
requirements in all states, the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, and the U.S. Virgin Islands. Thus, students 
graduating from CAPTE-accredited physical therapist and physical therapist assistant education programs are 
eligible to take the National Physical Therapy Examination and apply for licensure in all states, the District of 
Columbia, Puerto Rico, and the U.S. Virgin Islands. For more information regarding state qualifications and 
licensure requirements, refer to the Federation of State Boards of Physical Therapy website at www.fsbpt.org 

NOTE: Completion of an authorized educational program does not guarantee licensure or certification. States 
may have additional requirements such as a background check, jurisprudence examination, recommendations, 
etc. 
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https://nc-sara.org/
https://nc-sara.org/
https://marybaldwin.edu/health-sciences/school-of-health-human-performance/doctor-of-physical-therapy/


Mary Baldwin University recommends students consult the appropriate licensing agency or board in the 
respective state or territory in which they intend to practice before beginning any academic program or 
coursework.  If students experience difficulty finding the license requirements for a specific state or territory, 
please contact the program director or admissions. 

Master of Science in Physician Assistant 

The program has determined that its curriculum meets the state educational requirements for licensure or 
certification in all states and the District of Columbia. 

NOTE: Completion of an authorized educational program does not guarantee licensure or certification. States 
may have additional requirements such as a background check, jurisprudence examination, recommendations, 
etc. 

Mary Baldwin University recommends students consult the appropriate licensing agency or board in the 
respective state or territory in which they intend to practice before beginning any academic program or 
coursework.  If students experience difficulty finding the license requirements for a specific state or territory, 
please contact the program director or admissions. 

Doctor of Occupational Therapy 

ACOTE® accredited occupational therapy and occupational therapy assistant educational program satisfy the 
states’ educational requirements in all states, the District of Columbia, and Puerto Rico. Students graduating 
from an ACOTE® accredited occupational therapy and occupational therapy assistant program are eligible to 
take the National Board for Certification in Occupational Therapy (NBCOT) certification examination and apply 
for licensure in all states, the District of Columbia, and Puerto Rico. For more information regarding state 
qualifications and licensure requirements, please refer to the AOTA State Licensure webpage. 

NOTE: Completion of an authorized educational program does not guarantee licensure or certification. States 
may have additional requirements such as a background check, jurisprudence examination, recommendations, 
etc. 

Mary Baldwin University recommends students consult the appropriate licensing agency or board in the 
respective state or territory in which they intend to practice before beginning any academic program or 
coursework.  If students experience difficulty finding the license requirements for a specific state or territory, 
please contact the program director or admissions. 

Doctor of Nursing Practice 

The program has not yet determined which states and US territories its curriculum meets the state educational 
requirements for licensure or certification.  

NOTE: Completion of an authorized educational program does not guarantee licensure or certification. States 
may have additional requirements such as a background check, jurisprudence examination, recommendations, 
etc. 

Mary Baldwin University recommends students consult the appropriate licensing agency or board in the 
respective state or territory in which they intend to practice before beginning any academic program or 
coursework.  If students experience difficulty finding the license requirements for a specific state or territory, 
please contact the program director or admissions. 

Below is a link to the National Council of State Boards of Nursing to review the licensure requirements in your 
state. 
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https://marybaldwin.edu/health-sciences/school-of-health-human-performance/master-of-science-physician-assistant/
https://marybaldwin.edu/health-sciences/school-of-health-human-performance/doctor-of-occupational-therapy/
https://www.aota.org/Advocacy-Policy/State-Policy/Licensure.aspx
https://marybaldwin.edu/health-sciences/school-of-nursing/doctor-of-nursing-practice/


National Council of State Boards of Nursing: https://www.ncsbn.org/about-nursing-regulatory-bodies.htm 

Post Baccalaureate Teacher Licensure 

We go beyond preparing superior teachers. We offer degrees in high-demand fields including Teacher 
Education, Higher Education, and Applied Behavior Analysis. In today’s classroom, we identify the greatest 
needs and fill the gaps. So well, in fact, that 77 percent of our graduates teach in areas with the most critical 
shortages in Virginia. Our Teacher Education program prepares classroom leaders who lead, collaborate, 
include, and innovate.  Learn about our Conceptual Framework, the values and priorities that drive our mission 
to prepare reflective and knowledgeable teachers for the field. 

Master of Arts in Teaching 

We go beyond preparing superior teachers. We offer degrees in high-demand fields including Teacher 
Education, Higher Education, and Applied Behavior Analysis. In today’s classroom, we identify the greatest 
needs and fill the gaps. So well, in fact, that 77 percent of our graduates teach in areas with the most critical 
shortages in Virginia. Our Teacher Education program prepares classroom leaders who lead, collaborate, 
include, and innovate.  Learn about our Conceptual Framework, the values and priorities that drive our mission 
to prepare reflective and knowledgeable teachers for the field. 

Bachelor of Social Work 

Nationally Recognized and Accredited 

The Susan Warfield Caples School of Social Work at MBU meets rigorous academic standards to gain and 
maintain national accreditation from the Council on Social Work Education (CSWE). 

State Licensure Requirements and State Approving 
Agencies 

RN-BSN Program 
Program: RN to BSN Program 

Accreditation: Commission on Collegiate Nursing Education (https://www.ccneaccreditation.org) 

This program does not lead to licensure. 

Bachelor of Social Work 
Program: Bachelor of Social Work 

Accreditation: National Accreditation from the Counsel on Social Work Education (CSWE) https://cswe.org 

Alabama (AL) 
Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

Alabama State Board of Social Work Examiners 

Alaska (AK) 
Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

Alaska Board of Social Work Examiners 
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https://www.ncsbn.org/about-nursing-regulatory-bodies.htm
https://marybaldwin.edu/education/
https://marybaldwin.edu/education/college-education-mission-values/
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Arizona (AZ) 
Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

Arizona Board of Behavioral Health Examiners 

Arkansas (AR) 
Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

Arkansas Social Work Licensing Board 

California (CA) Does Not Meet Requirements California Board of Behavioral Science 
Colorado (CO) Does Not Meet Requirements Colorado State Board of Social Work Examiners 
Connecticut (CT) Does Not Meet Requirements Connecticut Department of Public Health, Social Work Licensure 

Delaware (DE) 
Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

Delaware Division of Professional Regulation Board of Social Work Examiners 

District of Columbia 
(DC) 

Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

DC Department of Health - Health Regulation and Licensing Administration 
(HRLA) 

Florida (FL) Does Not Meet Requirements 
Florida Board of Clinical Social Work, Marriage & Family Therapy and Mental 
Health Counseling 

Georgia (GA) Does Not Meet Requirements 
Georgia Board of Professional Counselors, Social Workers, and Marriage and 
Family Therapists 

Hawaii (HI) 
Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs Professional & Vocational 
Licensing Division 

Idaho (ID) 
Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

Idaho Board of Social Work Examiners 

Illinois (IL) 
Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

Illinois Department of Financial and Professional Regulation 

Indiana (IN) 
Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

Indiana Behavioral Health and Human Services Licensing Board 

Iowa (IA) 
Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

Iowa Board of Social Work 

Kansas (KS) 
Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

Kansas Behavioral Sciences Regulatory Board 

Kentucky (KY) 
Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

Kentucky Board of Social Work 

Louisiana (LA) 
Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

Louisiana State Board of Social Work Examiners 

Maine (ME) 
Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

Maine State Board of Social Worker Licensure 

Maryland (MD) 
Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

Maryland Board of Social Work Examiners 

Massachusetts (MA) 
Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

Massachusetts Board of Registration of Social Workers 

Michigan (MI) 
Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

Michigan Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs Board of Social 
Workers 

Minnesota (MN) 
Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

Minnesota Board of Social Work 

Mississippi (MS) 
Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

Mississippi Board of Examiners for Social Workers and Marriage and Family 
Therapists 

Missouri (MO) 
Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

Minnesota Board of Social Work 

Montana (MT) 
Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

Montana Department of Labor and Industry Board of Behavioral Health 

Nebraska (NE) 
Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

Nebraska Department of Health and Human Services Office of Behavioral 
Health and Consumer Services 

Nevada (NV) 
Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

Nevada Board of Examiners for Social Workers 

New Hampshire (NH) Does Not Meet Requirements 
New Hampshire Office of Professional Licensure and Certification Board of 
Mental Health Practice 

New Jersey (NJ) 
Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

New Jersey State Board of Social Work Examiners 

New Mexico (NM) 
Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

New Mexico Board of Social Work Examiners 

New York (NY) Does Not Meet Requirements New York State Education Department Office of the Professions 

North Carolina (NC) 
Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

NC Social Work Certification & Licensure Board 
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https://www.azbbhe.us/
https://www.healthy.arkansas.gov/programs-services/topics/arkansas-social-work-licensing-board
https://www.bbs.ca.gov/
https://dpo.colorado.gov/SocialWork
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https://idfpr.illinois.gov/
https://www.in.gov/pla/professions/behavioral-health-and-human-services/
https://naswia.socialworkers.org/Professional-Development/Social-Work-Licensure
https://ksbsrb.ks.gov/
https://bsw.ky.gov/Pages/index.aspx
https://www.labswe.org/
https://www.maine.gov/pfr/professionallicensing/professions/state-board-social-worker-licensure
https://health.maryland.gov/bswe/Pages/default.aspx
https://www.mass.gov/orgs/board-of-registration-of-social-workers
https://www.michigan.gov/lara/bureau-list/bpl/health/hp-lic-health-prof/social
https://www.michigan.gov/lara/bureau-list/bpl/health/hp-lic-health-prof/social
https://mn.gov/boards/social-work/
https://www.swmft.ms.gov/
https://www.swmft.ms.gov/
https://mn.gov/boards/social-work/
https://boards.bsd.dli.mt.gov/behavioral-health/
https://dhhs.ne.gov/Pages/behavioral-health.aspx
https://dhhs.ne.gov/Pages/behavioral-health.aspx
https://socwork.nv.gov/
https://www.oplc.nh.gov/board-mental-health-practice
https://www.oplc.nh.gov/board-mental-health-practice
https://www.njconsumeraffairs.gov/sw
https://www.rld.nm.gov/boards-and-commissions/individual-boards-and-commissions/social-work-examiners/
https://www.op.nysed.gov/professions-index/social-work
https://ncswboard.gov/


North Dakota (ND) 
Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

North Dakota Board of Social Work Examiners 

Ohio (OH) 
Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

Ohio Counselor, Social Worker and Marriage and Family Therapist Board 

Oklahoma (OK) 
Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

Oklahoma State Board of Licensed Social Work 

Oregon (OR) 
Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

Oregon Board of Licensed Social Workers 

Pennsylvania (PA) Does Not Meet Requirements 
Pennsylvania State Board of Social Workers, Marriage and Family Therapists and 
Professional Counselors 

Rhode Island (RI) Does Not Meet Requirements Rhode Island Board of Examiners in Social Workers 

South Carolina (SC) 
Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

South Carolina Board of Social Work Examiners 

South Dakota (SD) 
Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

South Dakota Board of Social Work Examiners 

Tennessee (TN) 
Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

Tennessee Board of Social Workers 

Texas (TX) 
Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

Texas State Board of Social Worker Examiners 

Utah (UT) 
Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

Utah Department of Commerce, Division of Occupational and Professional 
Licensing 

Vermont (VT) Does Not Meet Requirements Office of Professional Regulation - VT Secretary of State's Office 

Virginia (VA) 
Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

Virginia Department of Health Professions Board of Social Work 

Washington (WA) Does Not Meet Requirements 
Mental Health Counselors, Marriage and Family Therapists, and Social Workers 
Advisory Committee 

West Virginia (WV) 
Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

West Virginia Board of Social Work 

Wisconsin (WI) 
Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

State of Wisconsin Department of Safety and Professional Services 

Wyoming (WY) 
Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

Wyoming Mental Health Professions Licensing Board 

American Samoa Not yet determined American Samoa Department of Human and Social Services 
Federated States of 
Micronesia 

Not yet determined Department of Health and Social Affairs 

Guam 
Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

Guam Board of Social Work 

Northern Mariana 
Islands 

Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

Northern Mariana Islands Public School System 

Republic of Palau Not yet determined Republic of Palau 
Republic of the Marshall 
Islands 

Not yet determined Ministry of Health and Human Services 

Puerto Rico Not yet determined Puerto Rico Board of Examiners of Professional Social Workers 

U.S.Virgin Islands 
Meets Educational Requirements 
for Licensure 

Department of Licensing and Consumer Affairs 

Post Baccalaureate Teacher Licensure 
Program: Post Baccalaureate Teacher Licensure 

Accreditation: Council for the Accreditation of Educator Preparation (CAEP) https:caepnet.org 

Alabama (AL) Not yet determined Alabama State Department of Education 
Alaska (AK) Not yet determined Alaska Department of Education & Early Development 
Arizona (AZ) Not yet determined Arizona Department of Education 
Arkansas (AR) Not yet determined Arkansas Department of Education 
California (CA) Not yet determined California Department of Education 
Colorado (CO) Not yet determined Colorado Department of Education 
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https://www.ndbswe.com/
https://cswmft.ohio.gov/
https://oklahoma.gov/socialworkers.html
https://www.oregon.gov/blsw/pages/index.aspx
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https://www.dhp.virginia.gov/Boards/SocialWork/
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https://mentalhealth.wyo.gov/
http://dhss.as/
https://hsa.gov.fm/
https://guamhplo.org/boards-commissions/hplo/guam-board-social-work
https://www.cnmipss.org/
https://palauhealth.org/
https://rmihealth.org/
https://www.statedepartment.pr.gov/juntas-examinadoras/social-work-professionals
https://www.dlca.vi.gov/
https://www.alabamaachieves.org/
https://education.alaska.gov/teachercertification
https://www.azed.gov/
https://www.azed.gov/educator-certification
https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/di/cd/ap2/default
https://www.cde.state.co.us/


Connecticut (CT) Not yet determined Connecticut State Department of Education’s Bureau of Certification 
Delaware (DE) Not yet determined Delaware Department of Education 
District of Columbia (DC) Not yet determined District of Columbia Public Schools 
Florida (FL) Not yet determined Florida Department of Education 
Georgia (GA) Not yet determined Georgia Professional Standards Commission 
Hawaii (HI) Not yet determined Hawaii Teacher Standards Board 
Idaho (ID) Not yet determined Idaho State Department of Education 
Illinois (IL) Not yet determined Illinois State Board of Education 
Indiana (IN) Not yet determined Indiana Department of Education Office of Educator Licensing 
Iowa (IA) Not yet determined Iowa Department of Education 
Kansas (KS) Not yet determined Kansas State Department of Education 
Kentucky (KY) Not yet determined Kentucky Department of Education 
Louisiana (LA) Not yet determined Louisiana Department of Education 
Maine (ME) Not yet determined Certification Office, Maine Department of Education 
Maryland (MD) Not yet determined Maryland State Department of Education 

Massachusetts (MA) Not yet determined 
Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education Office of 
Educator Licensure 

Michigan (MI) Not yet determined Michigan Department of Education 
Minnesota (MN) Not yet determined Minnesota Professional Educator Licensing and Standards Board 
Mississippi (MS) Not yet determined Mississippi Department of Education 
Missouri (MO) Not yet determined Missouri Department of Elementary and Secondary Education 
Montana (MT) Not yet determined Montana Office of Public Instruction 
Nebraska (NE) Not yet determined Nebraska Department of Education 
Nevada (NV) Not yet determined State of Nevada Department of Education Educator Licensure 
New Hampshire (NH) Not yet determined New Hampshire Department of Education 
New Jersey (NJ) Not yet determined New Jersey Department of Education 
New Mexico (NM) Not yet determined New Mexico Public Education Department 
New York (NY) Not yet determined New York State Education Department Office of Teaching Initiatives 
North Carolina (NC) Not yet determined North Carolina Department of Public Instruction 
North Dakota (ND) Not yet determined North Dakota Education Standards and Practices Board 
Ohio (OH) Not yet determined Ohio Department of Education 
Oklahoma (OK) Not yet determined Oklahoma State Department of Education 
Oregon (OR) Not yet determined Oregon Teacher Standards and Practices Commission 

Pennsylvania (PA) Not yet determined 
Pennsylvania Department of Education Bureau of School Leadership and 
Teacher Quality 

Rhode Island (RI) Not yet determined Office of Educator Excellence and Certification Services 
South Carolina (SC) Not yet determined South Carolina Department of Education 
South Dakota (SD) Not yet determined South Dakota Department of Education 

Tennessee (TN) Not yet determined 
Office of Educator Licensure and Preparation Tennessee Department of 
Education 

Texas (TX) Not yet determined Texas Education Agency 
Utah (UT) Not yet determined Utah State Board of Education 
Vermont (VT) Not yet determined State of Vermont Agency of Education 

Virginia (VA) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Virginia Department of Education 

Washington (WA) Not yet determined Washington State Professional Educator Standards Board 
West Virginia (WV) Not yet determined West Virginia Department of Education 
Wisconsin (WI) Not yet determined Wisconsin Department of Public Instruction 
Wyoming (WY) Not yet determined Wyoming Professional Teaching Standards Board 
American Samoa Not yet determined American Samoa Department of Education 
Federated States of 
Micronesia 

Not yet determined Federal States of Micronesia 

Guam Not yet determined Guam Department of Education 
Northern Mariana 
Islands 

Not yet determined Northern Mariana Islands Public School System 

Republic of Palau Not yet determined Ministry of Education 
Republic of the Marshall 
Islands 

Not yet determined Republic of the Marshall Island DOE 

Puerto Rico Not yet determined Puerto Rico State Department of Education 
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https://portal.ct.gov/sdecertification
https://education.delaware.gov/
https://dc.gov/agency/dc-public-schools
https://www.fldoe.org/
https://www.gapsc.com/
https://hawaiiteacherstandardsboard.org/
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https://www.michigan.gov/mde
https://mn.gov/pelsb/
https://www.mdek12.org/
https://dese.mo.gov/
https://opi.mt.gov/
https://catalog.marybaldwin.edu/Nebraska%20Department%20of%20Education
https://doe.nv.gov/educator-licensure/
https://www.education.nh.gov/
https://www.nj.gov/education/
https://webnew.ped.state.nm.us/
https://www.highered.nysed.gov/tcert/
https://www.dpi.nc.gov/
https://www.nd.gov/espb/
https://education.ohio.gov/
https://sde.ok.gov/
https://www.oregon.gov/tspc/pages/index.aspx
https://www.education.pa.gov/Educators/Certification/Pages/Contact.aspx
https://www.education.pa.gov/Educators/Certification/Pages/Contact.aspx
https://ride.ri.gov/inside-ride/ride-offices/educator-excellence-certification-services
https://ed.sc.gov/
https://doe.sd.gov/
https://www.tn.gov/education/educators/licensing.html
https://www.tn.gov/education/educators/licensing.html
https://tea.texas.gov/
https://www.schools.utah.gov/
https://education.vermont.gov/
https://www.doe.virginia.gov/
https://www.pesb.wa.gov/
https://wvde.us/
https://dpi.wi.gov/
https://wyomingptsb.com/
https://www2.ed.gov/about/inits/ed/non-public-education/regulation-map/americansamoa.html
https://www2.ed.gov/about/contacts/state/pw.html
https://www.gdoe.net/
https://www.cnmipss.org/
https://www.palaugov.pw/executive-branch/ministries/education/
https://www2.ed.gov/about/contacts/state/mh.html
https://www2.ed.gov/about/contacts/state/pr.html


U.S. Virgin Islands Not yet determined The Virgin Islands Department of Education 

Doctor of Nursing Practice 
Program: Doctor of Nursing Practice 

Accreditation: Commission on Collegiate Nursing Education (https://www.ccneaccreditation.org) 

Alabama (AL) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Alabama Board of Nursing 

Alaska (AK) Does Not Meet Requirements Alaska Board of Nursing 

Arizona (AZ) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Arizona State Board of Nursing 

Arkansas (AR) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Arkansas State Board of Nursing 

California (CA) Does Not Meet Requirements California Board of Registered Nursing 

Colorado (CO) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Colorado Board of Nursing 

Connecticut (CT) Does Not Meet Requirements Connecticut Department of Public Health, Registered Nurse Licensure 

Delaware (DE) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Delaware Division of Professional Regulation Board of Nursing 

District of Columbia (DC) Does Not Meet Requirements District of Columbia Board of Nursing 

Florida (FL) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Florida Board of Nursing 

Georgia (GA) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Georgia Board of Nursing 

Hawaii (HI) Does Not Meet Requirements Hawaii Board of Nursing 

Idaho (ID) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Idaho Board of Nursing 

Illinois (IL) Does Not Meet Requirements Illinois Department of Financial and Professional Regulation 

Indiana (IN) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Indiana State Board of Nursing 

Iowa (IA) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Iowa Board of Nursing 

Kansas (KS) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Kansas Board of Nursing 

Kentucky (KY) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Kentucky Board of Nursing 

Louisiana (LA) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Louisiana State Board of Nursing 

Maine (ME) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Maine State Board of Nursing 

Maryland (MD) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Maryland Board of Nursing 

Massachusetts (MA) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Massachusetts Board of Registration in Nursing 

Michigan (MI) Does Not Meet Requirements Michigan Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs Board of Nursing 

Minnesota (MN) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Minnesota Board of Nursing 

Mississippi (MS) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Mississippi Board of Nursing 

Missouri (MO) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Missouri Division of Professional Registration Board of Nursing 

Montana (MT) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Montana Department of Labor and Industry Board of Nursing 

Nebraska (NE) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Nebraska Department of Health and Human Services Nurse Licensing 

Nevada (NV) Does Not Meet Requirements Nevada State Board of Nursing 
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https://vide.vi/
https://www.abn.alabama.gov/
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/
https://www.azbn.gov/
https://www.healthy.arkansas.gov/programs-services/topics/arkansas-board-of-nursing
https://www.rn.ca.gov/
https://dpo.colorado.gov/Nursing
https://portal.ct.gov/DPH/Practitioner-Licensing--Investigations/Registered-Nurse/Registered-Nurse-Licensure
https://dpr.delaware.gov/boards/nursing/
https://dchealth.dc.gov/bon
https://floridasnursing.gov/
https://sos.ga.gov/georgia-board-nursing
https://cca.hawaii.gov/pvl/boards/nursing/
https://dopl.idaho.gov/bon/
https://idfpr.illinois.gov/
https://www.in.gov/pla/professions/nursing-home/nursing-board/
https://dial.iowa.gov/licenses/medical/nursing-midwifery
https://ksbn.kansas.gov/
https://kbn.ky.gov/Pages/index.aspx
https://www.lsbn.state.la.us/
https://www.maine.gov/boardofnursing/
https://mbon.maryland.gov/Pages/default.aspx
https://www.mass.gov/orgs/board-of-registration-in-nursing
https://www.michigan.gov/lara/bureau-list/bpl/health/hp-lic-health-prof/nursing
https://mn.gov/boards/nursing/
https://www.msbn.ms.gov/
https://www.pr.mo.gov/nursing.asp
https://boards.bsd.dli.mt.gov/nursing/
https://dhhs.ne.gov/licensure/pages/nurse-licensing.aspx
https://nevadanursingboard.org/


New Hampshire (NH) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

New Hampshire Office of Professional Licensure and Certification Board of 
Nursing 

New Jersey (NJ) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

New Jersey Board of Nursing 

New Mexico (NM) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

New Mexico Board of Nursing 

New York (NY) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

New York State Education Department Office of the Professions 

North Carolina (NC) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

North Carolina Board of Nursing 

North Dakota (ND) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

North Dakota Board of Nursing 

Ohio (OH) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Ohio Board of Nursing 

Oklahoma (OK) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Oklahoma Board of Nursing 

Oregon (OR) Does Not Meet Requirements Oregon State Board of Nursing 
Pennsylvania (PA) Does Not Meet Requirements Pennsylvania State Board of Nursing 

Rhode Island (RI) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Rhode Island Board of Registration and Nursing Education 

South Carolina (SC) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

South Carolina Board of Nursing 

South Dakota (SD) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

South Dakota Board of Nursing 

Tennessee (TN) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Tennessee Board of Nursing 

Texas (TX) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Texas Board of Nursing 

Utah (UT) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Utah Department of Commerce, Division of Occupational and Professional 
Licensing 

Vermont (VT) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Board of Nursing - VT Secretary of State's Office 

Virginia (VA) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Virginia Department of Health Professions Board of Nursing 

Washington (WA) Does Not Meet Requirements 
Nursing Care and Quality Assurance Commission (housed at the WA 
Department of Health) 

West Virginia (WV) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

West Virginia Board of Examiners for Registered Professional Nurses 

Wisconsin (WI) Does Not Meet Requirements Wisconsin Board of Nursing 

Wyoming (WY) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Wyoming State Board of Nursing 

American Samoa Does Not Meet Requirements NCSBN Nursing Regulation 
Federated States of 
Micronesia 

Does Not Meet Requirements Federated States of Micronesia Department of Health and Social Affairs 

Guam Does Not Meet Requirements Guam Board of Nurse Examiners 
Northern Mariana Islands Does Not Meet Requirements NMI Board of Nursing 
Republic of Palau Does Not Meet Requirements Republic of Palau Ministry of Health and Human Services 
Republic of the Marshall 
Islands 

Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Republic of the Marshall Islands Ministry of Health and Human Services 

Puerto Rico 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Puerto Rico Board of Nursing Examiners 

U.S. Virgin Islands Does Not Meet Requirements Virgin Islands Board of Nurse Licensure 

Doctor of Occupational Therapy 
Program: Doctor of Occupational Therapy 

Accreditation: The Accreditation Council for Occupational Therapy Education (ACOTE) https://aota.org 
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https://www.oplc.nh.gov/new-hampshire-board-nursing
https://www.oplc.nh.gov/new-hampshire-board-nursing
https://www.njconsumeraffairs.gov/nur
https://www.bon.nm.gov/
https://www.op.nysed.gov/
https://www.ncbon.com/
https://www.ndbon.org/
https://nursing.ohio.gov/
https://oklahoma.gov/nursing.html
https://www.oregon.gov/osbn/pages/index.aspx
https://www.dos.pa.gov/ProfessionalLicensing/BoardsCommissions/Nursing/Pages/default.aspx
https://health.ri.gov/licenses/detail.php?id=231
https://llr.sc.gov/nurse/
https://doh.sd.gov/licensing-and-records/boards/nursing/
https://www.tn.gov/health/health-program-areas/health-professional-boards/nursing-board/nursing-board/about.html
https://www.bon.texas.gov/
https://dopl.utah.gov/
https://dopl.utah.gov/
https://sos.vermont.gov/nursing/
https://www.dhp.virginia.gov/Boards/Nursing/
https://nursing.wa.gov/
https://nursing.wa.gov/
https://wvrnboard.wv.gov/Pages/default.aspx
https://dsps.wi.gov/pages/BoardsCouncils/Nursing/Default.aspx
https://wsbn.wyo.gov/
https://ncsbn.org/boards.page
https://hsa.gov.fm/
https://guamhplo.org/boards-commissions/hplo/guam-board-nurse-examiners
https://nmibon.info/
https://palauhealth.org/
https://rmihealth.org/
https://www.ncsbn.org/bon-member-details/PuertoRico
https://vibnl.vi.gov/


Alabama (AL) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Alabama State Board of OT 

Alaska (AK) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Alaska State PT & OT Board 

Arizona (AZ) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Arizona Board of OT Examiners 

Arkansas (AR) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Arkansas State Medical Board 

California (CA) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

California Board of OT 

Colorado (CO) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Department of Regulatory Agencies 

Connecticut (CT) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Department of Public Health, OT Licensure 

Delaware (DE) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Delaware Division of Professional Regulation 

District of Columbia (DC) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

DC Health 

Florida (FL) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Florida Board of OT 

Georgia (GA) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Georgia State Board of OT 

Hawaii (HI) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Hawaii Professional & Vocational Licensing Division 

Idaho (ID) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Idaho Division of Occupational & Professional Licenses 

Illinois (IL) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Illinois Division of Professional Regulation Health Services 

Indiana (IN) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Indiana Professional Licensing Agency 

Iowa (IA) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Iowa Health & Human Services 

Kansas (KS) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Kansas State Board of Healing Arts 

Kentucky (KY) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Kentucky Board of Licensure for OT 

Louisiana (LA) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners 

Maine (ME) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

State of Maine Professional & Financial Regulation 

Maryland (MD) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Maryland Department of Health Board of OT Practice 

Massachusetts (MA) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Massachusettes Board of Allied Health Professions 

Michigan (MI) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Michigan Licensing and Regulatory Affairs 

Minnesota (MN) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Minnesota Board of OT Practice 

Mississippi (MS) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Mississippi State Department of Health 

Missouri (MO) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Missouri Division of Professional Registration 

Montana (MT) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Montana Board of OT Practice 

Nebraska (NE) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Nebraska Department of Health & Human Services 

Nevada (NV) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

State of Nevada Board of OT 

New Hampshire (NH) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

New Hampshire Office of Professional Licensure and Certification 

New Jersey (NJ) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

New Jersey OT Advisory Council 
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https://www.ot.alabama.gov/
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/web/cbpl/professionallicensing/physicaltherapyoccupationaltherapy.aspx
https://ot.az.gov/
https://www.armedicalboard.org/
https://www.bot.ca.gov/
https://dora.colorado.gov/
http://www.ct.gov/dph/
https://dpr.delaware.gov/boards/occupationaltherapy/
https://dchealth.dc.gov/
https://floridasoccupationaltherapy.gov/
https://sos.ga.gov/georgia-state-board-occupational-therapy
https://cca.hawaii.gov/pvl/programs/occupational/
https://dopl.idaho.gov/
https://idfpr.illinois.gov/profs/occtherapy
https://www.in.gov/pla/professions/occupational-therapy-home/
https://hhs.iowa.gov/
http://www.ksbha.org/professions/OT.shtml
https://bot.ky.gov/
https://www.lsbme.la.gov/
https://www.maine.gov/pfr/professionallicensing/
https://health.maryland.gov/botp/Pages/home.aspx
https://www.mass.gov/orgs/board-of-allied-health-professions
https://www.michigan.gov/lara/bureau-list/bpl/health/hp-lic-health-prof/ot
https://mn.gov/boards/occupational-therapy/
https://www.healthyms.com/
https://pr.mo.gov/octherapy.asp
https://boards.bsd.dli.mt.gov/occupational-therapy/
https://dhhs.ne.gov/licensure/Pages/Occupational-Therapy.aspx
https://www.nvot.org/
https://www.oplc.nh.gov/occupational-therapy-governing-board
https://www.njconsumeraffairs.gov/ot/Pages/default.aspx


New Mexico (NM) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

New Mexico Regulation & Licensing Department 

New York (NY) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

New York State Licensed Professions 

North Carolina (NC) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

North Carolina Board of OT 

North Dakota (ND) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

ND State Board to OT Practice 

Ohio (OH) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Ohio OTPTAT Board 

Oklahoma (OK) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Oklahoma Board of Medical Licensure & Supervision 

Oregon (OR) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Oregon Occupational Therapy Licensing Board 

Pennsylvania (PA) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Pennsylvania Department of State 

Rhode Island (RI) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

State of Rhode Island Department of Health 

South Carolina (SC) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

South Carolina Labor Licensing Regulation 

South Dakota (SD) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

South Dakota Board of Medical & Osteopathic Examiners 

Tennessee (TN) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Tennessee Department of Health 

Texas (TX) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Texas Board of OT Examiners 

Utah (UT) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Utah Division of Professional Licensing 

Vermont (VT) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Vermont OPR: Occupational Therapy 

Virginia (VA) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Virginia Department of Health Professions 

Washington (WA) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Washington State Department of Health 

West Virginia (WV) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

West Virginia Board of Occupational Therapy 

Wisconsin (WI) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

State of WI Department of Safety & Professional Services 

Wyoming (WY) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Wyoming Board of Occupational Therapy 

American Samoa 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

American Samoa Department of Health 

Federated States of 
Micronesia 

Not yet determined Federated States of Micronesia Department of Health and Social Affairs 

Guam 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Guam Board of Allied Health Examiners 

Northern Mariana Islands 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Northern Mariana Islands Board of Professional Licensing 

Republic of Palau Not yet determined Republic of Palau Ministry of Health and Human Services 
Republic of the Marshall 
Islands 

Not yet determined Republic of Marshall Islands Ministry of Health & Human Services 

Puerto Rico 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Puerto Rico Office of Regulation of Health Professions 

U.S. Virgin Islands 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

US Virgin Islands Department of Health, Office of Professional Licensure 
and Health Planning 

Doctor of Physical Therapy 
Program: Doctor of Physical Therapy 
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https://www.rld.nm.gov/boards-and-commissions/
https://www.op.nysed.gov/professions-index/occupational-therapy
https://www.ncbot.org/
https://www.ndotboard.com/
https://otptat.ohio.gov/
https://www.okmedicalboard.org/
https://www.oregon.gov/otlb/Pages/default.aspx
https://www.dos.pa.gov/ProfessionalLicensing/Pages/default.aspx
https://health.ri.gov/licenses/detail.php?id=234
https://llr.sc.gov/
https://www.sdbmoe.gov/
https://www.tn.gov/health
https://ptot.texas.gov/
https://www.dopl.utah.gov/
https://sos.vermont.gov/occupational-therapy/
https://www.dhp.virginia.gov/
https://doh.wa.gov/licenses-permits-and-certificates/professions-new-renew-or-update/occupational-therapist-and-occupational-therapy-assistant
https://wvbot.wv.gov/Pages/default.aspx
http://dsps.wi.gov/
https://occupationaltherapy.wyo.gov/home
https://www.americansamoa.gov/departments/depts/health.htm
https://hsa.gov.fm/
https://guamhplo.org/gbahe
https://www.cnmilicensing.gov.mp/health-care-professions-licensing-board/
https://palauhealth.org/
https://rmihealth.org/
https://www.salud.gov.pr/CMS/488
https://doh.vi.gov/programs/office-professional-licensure-and-health-planning
https://doh.vi.gov/programs/office-professional-licensure-and-health-planning


Accreditation: Commission on Accreditation in Physical Therapy Education CAPTE https://capteonline.org 

Alabama (AL) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Alabama Board of Physical Therapy 

Alaska (AK) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Alaska State Physical Therapy & Occupational Therapy Board 

Arizona (AZ 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Arizona State Board of Physical Therapy 

Arkansas (AR) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Arkansas State Board of Physical Therapy 

California (CA) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Physical Therapy Board of California 

Colorado (CO) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Colorado State Physical Therapy Board 

Connecticut (CT) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Connecticut Office of Practitioner Licensing and Certification 

Delaware (DE) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Delaware Examining Board of Physical Therapists and Athletic 
Trainers 

District of Columbia (DC) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

District of Columbia Board of Physical Therapy 

Florida (FL) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Florida Board of Physical Therapy 

Georgia (GA) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Georgia State Board of Physical Therapy 

Hawaii (HI) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Hawaii Board of Physical Therapy 

Idaho (ID) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Idaho Physical Therapy Board 

Illinois (IL) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Illinois Department of Financial and Professional Regulation - Physical 
Therapy 

Indiana (IN) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Indiana Physical Therapy Board 

Iowa (IA) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Iowa Board of Physical and Occupational Therapy 

Kansas (KS) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Kansas State Board of Healing Arts - Physical Therapy 

Kentucky (KY) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Kentucky Board of Physical Therapy 

Louisiana (LA) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Louisiana Physical Therapy Board 

Maine (ME) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

State of Maine Board of Physical Therapy 

Maryland (MD) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Maryland Board of Physical Therapy Examiners 

Massachusetts (MA) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Massachusetts Board of Allied Health Professions 

Michigan (MI) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Michigan Board of Physical Therapy 

Minnesota (MN) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Minnesota Board of Physical Therapy 

Mississippi (MS) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Mississippi State Board of Physical Therapy 

Missouri (MO) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Missouri Advisory Commission for Physical Therapists 

Montana (MT) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Montana Board of Physical Therapy Examiners 

Nebraska (NE) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Nebraska Department of Health and Human Services - Physical 
Therapy 

Nevada (NV) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

State of Nevada Physical Therapy Board 

New Hampshire (NH) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

New Hampshire Office of Professional Licensure and Certification 
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http://www.pt.alabama.gov/
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/web/cbpl/ProfessionalLicensing/PhysicalTherapyOccupationalTherapy.aspx
https://ptboard.az.gov/
https://www.healthy.arkansas.gov/programs-services/topics/arkansas-state-board-of-physical-therapy
https://www.ptbc.ca.gov/
https://dpo.colorado.gov/
https://portal.ct.gov/DPH/Public-Health-Hearing-Office/Board-of-Examiners-for-Physical-Therapists/Board-of-Examiners-for-Physical-Therapists
https://dpr.delaware.gov/boards/physicaltherapy/
https://dpr.delaware.gov/boards/physicaltherapy/
https://dchealth.dc.gov/node/159572
https://floridasphysicaltherapy.gov/
https://sos.ga.gov/georgia-state-board-physical-therapy
https://cca.hawaii.gov/pvl/boards/physicaltherapy/
https://dopl.idaho.gov/pht/
https://idfpr.illinois.gov/profs/pt.html
https://idfpr.illinois.gov/profs/pt.html
https://www.in.gov/pla/professions/physical-therapy-home/physical-therapy-board/
https://hhs.iowa.gov/Licensure/Iowa-Board-of-Physical-and-Occupational-Therapy
http://www.ksbha.org/professions/PT.shtml
https://pt.ky.gov/Pages/default.aspx
https://www.laptboard.org/
https://www.maine.gov/pfr/professionallicensing/professions/board-physical-therapy
https://health.maryland.gov/bphte/Pages/index.aspx
https://www.mass.gov/orgs/board-of-allied-health-professions
https://www.michigan.gov/lara/bureau-list/bpl/health/hp-lic-health-prof/pt
https://mn.gov/boards/physical-therapy/
https://www.msbpt.ms.gov/secure/index.asp
https://pr.mo.gov/physicaltherapists.asp
https://boards.bsd.dli.mt.gov/physical-therapy-examiners/
https://dhhs.ne.gov/Licensure/Pages/Physical-Therapy.aspx
https://dhhs.ne.gov/Licensure/Pages/Physical-Therapy.aspx
https://ptboard.nv.gov/
https://www.oplc.nh.gov/


New Jersey (NJ) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

New Jersey State Board of Physical Therapy Examiners 

New Mexico (NM) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

New Mexico Physical Therapy Board 

New York (NY) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

New York State Office of the Professions - Physical Therapy 

North Carolina (NC) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

North Carolina Board of Physical Therapy Examiners 

North Dakota (ND) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

North Dakota State Board of Physical Therapy 

Ohio (OH) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Ohio Occupational Therapy, Physical Therapy, and Athletic Trainers 
Board 

Oklahoma (OK) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Oklahoma Physical Therapists Committee 

Oregon (OR) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Oregon Board of Physical Therapy 

Pennsylvania (PA) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Pennsylvania State Board of Physical Therapy 

Rhode Island (RI) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

State of Rhode Island Board of Physical Therapy 

South Carolina (SC) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

South Carolina Board of Physical Therapy 

South Dakota (SD) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

South Dakota Board of Medical and Osteopathic Examiners 

Tennessee (TN) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Tennessee Board of Physical Therapy 

Texas (TX) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Texas Board of Physical Therapy Examiners 

Utah (UT) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Utah Division of Professional Licensing - Physical Therapy 

Vermont (VT) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Vermont Office of Professional Regulation - Physical Therapists 

Virginia (VA) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Virginia Board of Physical Therapy 

Washington (WA) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Washington State Department of Health Board of Physical Therapy 

West Virginia (WV) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

West Virginia Board of Physical Therapy 

Wisconsin (WI) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Wisconsin Physical Therapy Examining Board 

Wyoming (WY) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Wyoming Board of Physical Therapy 

American Samoa Not yet determined American Samoa Department of Health 
Federated States of 
Micronesia 

Not yet determined 
Federated States of Micronesia Department of Health and Social 
Affairs 

Guam 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Guam Department of Public Health & Social Services 

Northern Mariana Islands 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Commonwealth of Northern Mariana Islands Board of Professional 
Licensing 

Republic of Palau Not yet determined Republic of Palau Ministry of Health and Human Services 
Republic of the Marshall 
Islands 

Not yet determined 
Republic of the Marshall Islands Ministry of Health and Human 
Services 

Puerto Rico 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Puerto Rico Office of Regulation and Certification of Health 
Professionals 

U.S.Virgin Islands 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Virgin Islands Board of Physical Therapy Examiners 
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https://www.njconsumeraffairs.gov/pt/
https://www.rld.nm.gov/boards-and-commissions/individual-boards-and-commissions/physical-therapy/
https://www.op.nysed.gov/professions-index/physical-therapy
https://www2.ncptboard.org/
https://www.ndbpt.org/
https://otptat.ohio.gov/
https://otptat.ohio.gov/
https://www.okmedicalboard.org/physical_therapists
https://www.oregon.gov/pt/Pages/default.aspx
https://www.dos.pa.gov/ProfessionalLicensing/BoardsCommissions/PhysicalTherapy/Pages/default.aspx#.Vv
https://health.ri.gov/licenses/detail.php?id=236#three
https://llr.sc.gov/pt/
https://www.sdbmoe.gov/
https://www.tn.gov/health/health-program-areas/health-professional-boards/pt-board.html
https://ptot.texas.gov/
https://dopl.utah.gov/physical-therapy/
https://sos.vermont.gov/physical-therapists/
http://www.dhp.virginia.gov/physicaltherapy/
https://doh.wa.gov/licenses-permits-and-certificates/professions-new-renew-or-update/physical-therapist-and-physical-therapist-assistant
https://wvbopt.wv.gov/Pages/default.aspx
https://dsps.wi.gov/pages/Professions/PT/Default.aspx
https://physicaltherapy.wyo.gov/
https://www.americansamoa.gov/departments/depts/health.htm
https://hsa.gov.fm/
https://hsa.gov.fm/
https://dphss.guam.gov/dph/
https://www.cnmilicensing.gov.mp/
https://www.cnmilicensing.gov.mp/
https://palauhealth.org/
https://rmihealth.org/
https://rmihealth.org/
https://www.salud.gov.pr/CMS/488
https://www.salud.gov.pr/CMS/488
https://www.vitherapyboard.org/


Master of Arts in Teaching 
Program: Master of Arts in Teaching 

Accreditation: Council for the Accreditation of Educator Preparation (CAEP) https:caepnet.org 

Alabama (AL) Not yet determined Alabama State Department of Education 
Alaska (AK) Not yet determined Alaska Department of Education & Early Development 
Arizona (AZ) Not yet determined Arizona Department of Education 
Arkansas (AR) Not yet determined Arkansas Department of Education 
California (CA) Not yet determined California Department of Education 
Colorado (CO) Not yet determined Colorado Department of Education 
Connecticut (CT) Not yet determined Connecticut State Department of Education’s Bureau of Certification 
Delaware (DE) Not yet determined Delaware Department of Education 
District of Columbia (DC) Not yet determined District of Columbia Public Schools 
Florida (FL) Not yet determined Florida Department of Education 
Georgia (GA) Not yet determined Georgia Professional Standards Commission 
Hawaii (HI) Not yet determined Hawaii Teacher Standards Board 
Idaho (ID) Not yet determined Idaho State Department of Education 
Illinois (IL) Not yet determined Illinois State Board of Education 
Indiana (IN) Not yet determined Indiana Department of Education Office of Educator Licensing 
Iowa (IA) Not yet determined Iowa Department of Education 
Kansas (KS) Not yet determined Kansas State Department of Education 
Kentucky (KY) Not yet determined Kentucky Department of Education 
Louisiana (LA) Not yet determined Louisiana Department of Education 
Maine (ME) Not yet determined Certification Office, Maine Department of Education 
Maryland (MD) Not yet determined Maryland State Department of Education 

Massachusetts (MA) Not yet determined 
Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education Office of 
Educator Licensure 

Michigan (MI) Not yet determined Michigan Department of Education 
Minnesota (MN) Not yet determined Minnesota Professional Educator Licensing and Standards Board 
Mississippi (MS) Not yet determined Mississippi Department of Education 
Missouri (MO) Not yet determined Missouri Department of Elementary and Secondary Education 
Montana (MT) Not yet determined Montana Office of Public Instruction 
Nebraska (NE) Not yet determined Nebraska Department of Education 
Nevada (NV) Not yet determined State of Nevada Department of Education Educator Licensure 
New Hampshire (NH) Not yet determined New Hampshire Department of Education 
New Jersey (NJ) Not yet determined New Jersey Department of Education 
New Mexico (NM) Not yet determined New Mexico Public Education Department 
New York (NY) Not yet determined New York State Education Department Office of Teaching Initiatives 
North Carolina (NC) Not yet determined North Carolina Department of Public Instruction 
North Dakota (ND) Not yet determined North Dakota Education Standards and Practices Board 
Ohio (OH) Not yet determined Ohio Department of Education 
Oklahoma (OK) Not yet determined Oklahoma State Department of Education 
Oregon (OR) Not yet determined Oregon Teacher Standards and Practices Commission 

Pennsylvania (PA) Not yet determined 
Pennsylvania Department of Education Bureau of School Leadership and 
Teacher Quality 

Rhode Island (RI) Not yet determined Office of Educator Excellence and Certification Services 
South Carolina (SC) Not yet determined South Carolina Department of Education 
South Dakota (SD) Not yet determined South Dakota Department of Education 

Tennessee (TN) Not yet determined 
Office of Educator Licensure and Preparation Tennessee Department of 
Education 

Texas (TX) Not yet determined Texas Education Agency 
Utah (UT) Not yet determined Utah State Board of Education 
Vermont (VT) Not yet determined State of Vermont Agency of Education 
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https://www.alabamaachieves.org/
https://education.alaska.gov/teachercertification
https://www.azed.gov/
https://www.azed.gov/educator-certification
https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/di/cd/ap2/default
https://www.cde.state.co.us/
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https://www.isbe.net/
https://www.in.gov/doe/educators/educator-licensing/
https://educateiowa.gov/
https://www.ksde.org/
https://www.education.ky.gov/Pages/default.aspx
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https://www.maine.gov/doe/cert
https://www.marylandpublicschools.org/Pages/Default.aspx
https://www.doe.mass.edu/licensure/
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https://mn.gov/pelsb/
https://www.mdek12.org/
https://dese.mo.gov/
https://opi.mt.gov/
https://catalog.marybaldwin.edu/Nebraska%20Department%20of%20Education
https://doe.nv.gov/educator-licensure/
https://www.education.nh.gov/
https://www.nj.gov/education/
https://webnew.ped.state.nm.us/
https://www.highered.nysed.gov/tcert/
https://www.dpi.nc.gov/
https://www.nd.gov/espb/
https://education.ohio.gov/
https://sde.ok.gov/
https://www.oregon.gov/tspc/pages/index.aspx
https://www.education.pa.gov/Educators/Certification/Pages/Contact.aspx
https://www.education.pa.gov/Educators/Certification/Pages/Contact.aspx
https://ride.ri.gov/inside-ride/ride-offices/educator-excellence-certification-services
https://ed.sc.gov/
https://doe.sd.gov/
https://www.tn.gov/education/educators/licensing.html
https://www.tn.gov/education/educators/licensing.html
https://tea.texas.gov/
https://www.schools.utah.gov/
https://education.vermont.gov/


Virginia (VA) 
Meets Educational Requirements for 
Licensure 

Virginia Department of Education 

Washington (WA) Not yet determined Washington State Professional Educator Standards Board 
West Virginia (WV) Not yet determined West Virginia Department of Education 
Wisconsin (WI) Not yet determined Wisconsin Department of Public Instruction 
Wyoming (WY) Not yet determined Wyoming Professional Teaching Standards Board 
American Samoa Not yet determined American Samoa Department of Education 
Federated States of 
Micronesia 

Not yet determined Federal States of Micronesia 

Guam Not yet determined Guam Department of Education 
Northern Mariana 
Islands 

Not yet determined Northern Mariana Islands Public School System 

Republic of Palau Not yet determined Ministry of Education 
Republic of the Marshall 
Islands 

Not yet determined Republic of the Marshall Island DOE 

Puerto Rico Not yet determined Puerto Rico State Department of Education 
U.S. Virgin Islands Not yet determined The Virgin Islands Department of Education 

MSPA Licensure Information 
Program: Master of Science in Physician Assistant 

Accreditation: Accreditation Review Commission on Education for the Physician Assistant, Inc. (ARC-PA) 
http://arc-pa.org 

Alabama (AL) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Board of Medical Examiners 

Alaska (AK) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

State Medical Board 

Arizona (AZ) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Arizona Regulatory Board of PA 

Arkansas (AR) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

State Medical Board 

California (CA) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

CA PA Board 

Colorado (CO) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Colorado Deptartment of Regulatory Agencies 

Connecticut (CT) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Division of Medical Quality Assurance 

Delaware (DE 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Board of Medical Licensure & Discipline 

District of Columbia 
(DC) 

Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Board of Medicine 

Florida (FL) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Florida Board of Medicine 

Georgia (GA) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Composite Medical Board 

Hawaii (HI) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Hawaii Medical Board 

Idaho (ID) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Idaho Division of Occupational & Professional Licenses 

Illinois (IL) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Division of Professional Regulation 

Indiana (IN) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Physician Assistant Licensing Information 

Iowa (IA) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Iowa Health & Human Services 
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https://www.doe.virginia.gov/
https://www.pesb.wa.gov/
https://wvde.us/
https://dpi.wi.gov/
https://wyomingptsb.com/
https://www2.ed.gov/about/inits/ed/non-public-education/regulation-map/americansamoa.html
https://www2.ed.gov/about/contacts/state/pw.html
https://www.gdoe.net/
https://www.cnmipss.org/
https://www.palaugov.pw/executive-branch/ministries/education/
https://www2.ed.gov/about/contacts/state/mh.html
https://www2.ed.gov/about/contacts/state/pr.html
https://vide.vi/
http://www.albme.org/
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/web/cbpl/ProfessionalLicensing/StateMedicalBoard.aspx
https://www.azpa.gov/
https://www.armedicalboard.org/
https://www.pab.ca.gov/
https://dpo.colorado.gov/Medical
http://www.ct.gov/dph/cwp/view.asp?a=3121&q=389510
https://dpr.delaware.gov/boards/medicalpractice/
https://dchealth.dc.gov/
https://flboardofmedicine.gov/
https://medicalboard.georgia.gov/
https://cca.hawaii.gov/pvl/boards/medical/
https://dopl.idaho.gov/bom/
https://idfpr.illinois.gov/profs/PhysicianAssistant.asp
https://idfpr.illinois.gov/profs/PhysicianAssistant.asp
https://hhs.iowa.gov/Licensure/Iowa-Board-of-Physician-Assistants


Kansas (KS) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Kansas State Board of Human Arts 

Kentucky (KY) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Board of Medical Licensure 

Louisiana (LA) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

State Board of Medical Examiners 

Maine (ME) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Maine Board fo Licensure in Medicine 

Maryland (MD) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Maryland Board of Physicians 

Massachusetts (MA) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Board of Registration of PA 

Michigan (MI) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Licensing & Regulatory Affairs 

Minnesota (MN) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Board of Medical Practice 

Mississippi (MS) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Mississippi State Board of Medical Licensure 

Missouri (MO) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Division of Professional Registration 

Montana (MT) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Montana Board of Medical Examiners 

Nebraska (NE) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Department of Health & Human Services 

Nevada (NV) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners 

New Hampshire (NH) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Office of Professional Licensure & Certification 

New Jersey (NJ) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Division of Consumer Affairs 

New Mexico (NM) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

New Mexico Medical Board 

New York (NY) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Office of the Professions 

North Carolina (NC) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

North Carolina Medical Board 

North Dakota (ND) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

ND Board of Medicine 

Ohio (OH) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

State Medical Board 

Oklahoma (OK) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Oklahoma Physician Assistants 

Oregon (OR) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Oregon Medical Board 

Pennsylvania (PA) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Pennsylvania Department of State 

Rhode Island (RI) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Board of Physician Assistants 

South Carolina (SC) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Board of Medical Examiners 

South Dakota (SD) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

SD Board of Medical & Osteopathic Examiners 

Tennessee (TN) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Committee on Physician Assistants 

Texas (TX) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Physician Assistant Board 

Utah (UT) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Division of Professional Licensing 

Vermont (VT) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Board of Medical Practice 

Virginia (VA) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

VA Board of Medicine 
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http://www.ksbha.org/main.shtml
https://kbml.ky.gov/ah/Pages/Physician-Assistant.aspx
https://www.lsbme.la.gov/licensure/physician-assistants
https://www.maine.gov/md/licensure/pa-license
https://www.mbp.state.md.us/licensure_licensing.aspx
https://www.mass.gov/orgs/board-of-registration-of-physician-assistants
https://www.michigan.gov/lara/bureau-list/bpl/health/hp-lic-health-prof/pa
https://mn.gov/boards/medical-practice/
https://www.msbml.ms.gov/Licensure/Physician_Assistant
https://pr.mo.gov/physicianassistants.asp
https://boards.bsd.dli.mt.gov/medical-examiners/
https://dhhs.ne.gov/licensure/pages/physician-assistant.aspx
https://medboard.nv.gov/Forms/PhysicianAsst/
https://www.oplc.nh.gov/board-medicine
https://www.njconsumeraffairs.gov/pa/
https://www.nmmb.state.nm.us/
https://www.op.nysed.gov/prof/med/rpa.htm
https://www.ncmedboard.org/
https://www.ndbom.org/practitioners/
https://med.ohio.gov/Apply/Physician-Assistant-PA
https://www.okmedicalboard.org/physician_assistants
https://www.oregon.gov/omb/pages/default.aspx?utm_source=OMB&utm_medium=egov_redirect&utm_campaign=www.oregon.gv%2Fomb%2Fpages%2Findex.aspx
https://www.dos.pa.gov/ProfessionalLicensing/BoardsCommissions/Medicine/Pages/default.aspx
https://health.ri.gov/licenses/detail.php?id=237
https://llr.sc.gov/med/
https://www.sdbmoe.gov/
https://www.tn.gov/health/health-program-areas/health-professional-boards/pa-board.html
https://www.tmb.state.tx.us/page/licensing-physician-assistants
https://dopl.utah.gov/physician-assistant/
https://www.healthvermont.gov/systems/board-medical-practice
https://www.dhp.virginia.gov/Boards/Medicine/


Washington (WA) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Washington Medical Commission 

West Virginia (WV) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Board of Medicine 

Wisconsin (WI) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Medical Examining Board 

Wyoming (WY) 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Wyoming Board of Medicine 

American Samoa) Not yet determined 
Health Services Regulatory Board; Executive Office Building, Pago Pago AS, 
96799; (684) 633-1222, Fax: (684) 633-1869 

Federated States of 
Micronesia 

Not yet determined Federated States of Micronesia Department of Health and Social Affairs 

Guam Not yet determined Board of Medical Examiners 
Northern Mariana 
Islands 

Not yet determined Health Care Professions Licensing Board 

Republic of Palau Not yet determined Republic of Palau Ministry of Health and Human Services 
Republic of the 
Marshall Islands 

Not yet determined Republic of the Marshall Islands Ministry of Health and Human Services 

Puerto Rico 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

Department of State 

U.S. Virgin Islands 
Meets Educational 
Requirements for Licensure 

VI Board of Medical Examiners 

Student Rights 

Student Rights under a State Authorization 
Reciprocity Agreement (SARA) 
Students who reside in a State Authorization Reciprocity Agreement (SARA) state who have a complaint about 
MBU need to go through the institution's grievance policy. 

Students not satisfied with the outcome of MBU's grievance process involving specific allegations of fraudulent 
activity, including the provision of false or misleading information, may subsequently submit a complaint to the 
State Council for Higher Education for Virginia (SCHEV) for final resolution. 

Examples of types of student complaints that may be brought to a SARA portal entity include, but are not 
limited to, complaints regarding accuracy of job placement data, tuition or fee information, accreditation, 
whether a program meets licensure requirements, or course transfer information. Grade appeals and student 
conduct appeals are not allowed under SARA. 

State Council of Higher Education for Virginia 
101 N 14th St, 9th Floor 
Richmond, VA 23219 

Policy on Refunds and Cancellations 

Pro Rata Refund Procedures 

The Higher Education Amendments of 1992 define a pro rata refund as a refund to a student of not less than 
that portion of the tuition, fees, room, board, and other charges minus any unpaid student charges, and minus 
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https://wmc.wa.gov/licensing
https://wvbom.wv.gov/
https://dsps.wi.gov/pages/BoardsCouncils/MEB/Default.aspx
https://wyomedboard.wyo.gov/
https://hsa.gov.fm/
https://guamhplo.org/gbme
https://cnmibpl-hcplb.net/sec.asp?secID=15
https://palauhealth.org/
https://rmihealth.org/
https://www.salud.gov.pr/CMS/356
https://www.vimedicalboard.org/
https://catalog.marybaldwin.edu/uniform-student-grievance-policy


a reasonable administrative fee assessed the student equal to the portion of the enrollment period for which 
the student has been charged on the date the student notifies an administrative office that they are 
withdrawing. In some cases the last day of attendance as documented by faculty at an academic related 
activity may be used. 

The pro rata refund is applicable to students who completely withdraw from the institution up through the 
60.000 percent point in the semester (beginning of classes to the end of exam period). At the 60.001% mark or 
later, refunds are not granted, and students have earned 100% of their financial aid for that semester. 

There is no additional charge for attending the May Term for currently enrolled full-time (either fall or spring) 
residential or commuter students. 

For students subject to the institutional refund policy, the MBU Student Account Office calculates a federal 
refund amount according to regulatory requirements. 

Federal law requires federal funds to be returned in the following order: Unsubsidized Direct Loans, Subsidized 
Direct Loans, Direct PLUS Loans, Federal Pell Grants, FSEOG Grants, Federal TEACH grants, Iraq and 
Afghanistan Service Grants. 

Please note that if a student has a federal student loan, any type of withdrawal or leave causes the student to 
be reported as “withdrawn” to the National Student Loan Database. The student’s federal loan grace period will 
begin from the date of determination, which is the date the student provides official notification to the 
institution requesting to withdraw or take a leave of absence. Unofficial withdrawals (where a student ceases 
attendance without providing official notification to the institution) that result in a student’s failure to earn a 
passing grade in any class will be subject to Return of Title IV Funds regulations based on the 50% point in the 
semester or the faculty reported last date of attendance. The institution charges are not reduced if the student 
does not officially withdraw. Contact the Financial Aid office for more information. 

If you need addtional Financial Aid information for MBU please visit the Financial Aid information in the 
academic catalog. 

Substantive Change 

If for any reason the University cannot fully deliver the instruction for which the student has contracted there 
are processes in place to deliver alternative instruction or reasonable financial compensation. 

MBU follows the guidelines set by SACSCOC in the Substantive Change manual to ensure that students have 
the opportunity to complete their program of study. 

Catastrophic Events and Continuity of Operations 

Operational Systems 

The university leverages highly available educational technologies such as the Learning Management System 
(Canvas) and the Jenzabar Student Information System. These and many other platforms are housed in the 
"cloud" to minimize the likelihood of noticeable service interruption. The Office of Information Technology has 
policies and resources that ensure that systems are protected form vulnerabilities, adequately secured, and 
backed up to prevent record destruction and/or data loss. 
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https://catalog.marybaldwin.edu/financial-aid
https://sacscoc.org/app/uploads/2019/08/SubstantiveChange.pdf


Ensuring Continuity of Operations & Emergency/Crisis Response 

MBU mitigates the impact of crisis situations and operational disruptions on its campus community through 
the implementation of policies and procedures that provide for continuity of operations in cases of 
catastrophic events. 

• Permanent Academic Records are digitized and stored on a secure network. 
• Refund policies provide guidance for ensuring that financial refunds are processed timely and consistently 

and in accordance with MBU policy and applicable federal, state and accreditation requirements. In the 
event that a catastrophic event occurs, the university maintains the authority to enact additional financial 
refunds to students that are deemed appropriate during such circumstances. 

• Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) and the IT Systems Disaster Recovery Plans provide detail 
emergency instructions for MBU faculty, staff, students, and visitors to ensure safety and protection of 
property during fire, sever weather, loss of utilities, and other emergencies. 

Program Discontinuances 

In the unlikely event that MBU cannot deliver the instruction for which students have enrolled, the university 
commits to one or more of the following courses of action, depending on each individual student's needs: 

• Providing a reasonable alternative for delivering instruction and/or services for which students have paid 
• Providing reasonable financial refund for the education students did not receive 
• Providing assistance for transferring earned credits to other institutions 

MBU students will be notified in person by university administration and then counseled about their options by 
their advisors. In accordance with institutional accreditation requirements, a teach-out plan will be submitted 
to the Southern Association of Colleges and Schools Commission on Colleges (SACSCOC) prior to its 
implementation. 
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